
 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA 

 

 

Proclamation 
 

Constitution Week 
September 17 - 23 

 
 

WHEREAS, It is the privilege and duty of the American people to commemorate the 

two hundred and thirty-fifth anniversary of the drafting of the Constitution of the 
United States of America with appropriate ceremonies and activities; and   

 

 

WHEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by 

the President of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as 
Constitution Week. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township do 

hereby proclaim the week of September 17 through 23 as  

 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 

 

and urge all citizens to study the Constitution and reflect on the privilege of being an 

American with all the rights and responsibilities which that privilege involves.  

 

PROCLAIMED this 15th day of September 2022. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Gary Neights, Chairman 

Lower Providence Township 

 Board of Supervisors 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
September 1, 2022 
 
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

   

 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

September 1, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chairman Neights called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Chairman Neights provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following Board members were in attendance: Chairman Neights, Vice-Chair Coless, 

Supervisor Darby, Supervisor MacFarland and Supervisor Sorgini. 

b. Also in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Michael Clarke, Township Solicitor; Tim 

Woodrow, Township Engineer; Mike Mrozinski, Community Development Director; Michael 

Jackson, Chief of Police, and Ash Jeyapratap, Student Representative. 

 

Chairman’s Comments 

Chairman Neights announced that an executive session was held prior to the meeting on September 1, 

2022 to discuss personnel and legal matters.  

 

He also announced that agenda Item 3c, Consideration of Resolution 2022-24 granting preliminary land 

development approval of 420 Church Road subdivision, had been removed from the agenda and moved 

to the September 15, 2022 agenda. Chairman Neights stated that in the future, following the presentation 

of any development-related agenda items to the board, the process will be to take a vote on the item two 

meetings later, rather than the very next meeting.  

 

Chairman Neights read a proclamation regarding the 9/11 National Memorial Trail, a portion of which 

runs through Lower Providence Township. 

 

1) Presentations 

A) Presentation to outgoing Board of Supervisors student representatives Chinmay Bapat, Uma 

Bapat, Sameeksha Panda and Anna Rozinsky. The students were recognized for their service and 

initiative.  

B) 2023 Minimum Municipal Obligation (MMO) – Charles Friedlander of Municipal Finance 

Partners explained that PA Act 205 imposes funding requirements on all municipal pension plans 

based on actuarial valuation reports. Mr. Friedlander said a slight increase in the Township’s net 

obligation is anticipated for 2023. In 2022, MMOs totaled $1.375 million. In 2023, MMOs total 

$1.399 million, increasing the net obligation from $976,751 to $1,001,327 after deducting the 

anticipated state aid.  

C) Student Representative report from Ash Jeyapratap 

i) Ash, a junior at Methacton High School, presented news from the various schools in the 

district. 

 

2) Consent Agenda  



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
September 1, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 

   

A) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1(a) and 1(b), 

including moving the meeting minutes of the August 18, 2022 Board of Supervisors business  

meeting into the record and authorizing an escrow release to HTC Developers in the amount of 

$91,480.59. Supervisor Coless seconded the motion.   

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

3) Old Business 

A) Consideration of Resolution 2022-22 granting the request for waiver of land development at 

3922 Ridge Pike with conditions 

i) Staff has reviewed and recommends the waiver, with conditions, for the project that involves 

minor site work. 

ii) Anthony Hibbeln and Brian Bischof of Affiliated Trades Credit Union spoke on behalf of the 

project. It was noted that sidewalks are included in PennDOT’s proposed project that 

includes the site and that stormwater work will be coordinated with PennDOT. 

iii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-22 granting 

the waiver of land development at 3922 Ridge Pike. Supervisor Coless seconded the motion. 

iv) There was no public comment. 

v) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

B) Consideration of Resolution 2022-23 granting conditional final land development approval of 

Shannondell Phase III 

i) Solicitor Clarke explained that Audubon Land Development’s Phase III includes four new 

residential units and a central community building on the Shannondell at Valley Forge site. 

ii) Chairman Neights noted that the conditions in the resolution included road improvements 

and widening. Also included is a bike and pedestrian trail along Egypt Road that is part of the 

National 9-11 Trail. 

iii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-23 granting 

conditional final land development approval of Shannondell Phase III. Chairman Neights 

seconded the motion. 

iv) There was no public comment. 

v) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

C) Consideration of Resolution 2022-24 granting preliminary land development approval of 420 

Church Road subdivision. 

i) Tabled and moved to the September 15, 2022 agenda. 

 

D) Consideration of Resolution 2022-25 establishing a policy for tax assessment appeals 

i) Mr. Mentry said the resolution formalizes the board’s discussion held at the August 18, 2022 

meeting. He explained that under the policy, the Solicitor would intervene in cases in which 

the property’s current indicated fair market value is $10,000,000 or above. Any variations 

could be handled on a case-by-case basis. 

ii) MOTION:  Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-25 

establishing a policy for tax assessment appeals. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion.  

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
September 1, 2022 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 

   

 

 

E) Discussion of an ordinance creating a Human Relations Commission and establishing a policy of 

non-discrimination 

i) Solicitor Clarke said that the proposed ordinance and comments from the board’s earlier 

discussion had been sent to the state’s Human Relations Commission (HRC) for review. He 

anticipated the review would take some time. 

ii) Supervisor MacFarland said he had circulated some documentation to the Board taking a 

different approach to the issue, but suggested tabling further discussion until the review from 

the Human Relations Commission is received and there could be a comparative discussion. 

iii) Chairman Neights said he looks forward to collaboratively working towards a final 

document. 

iv) Supervisor Darby said she favors an ordinance versus a resolution, noting that an ordinance 

would be more formal, permanent and beneficial to the community as a whole. 

v) Supervisor Coless asked Solicitor Clarke to differentiate between a resolution and ordinance 

in this instance. She said that she is interested in something more substantive. 

vi) Solicitor Clarke explained ordinances create greater enforcement for a municipality. He said 

that a more detailed contrast and comparison could be provided when the response is 

received from the HRC.   

 

4) New Business  

A) Acceptance of resignation of Terrance Barnes from the Zoning Hearing Board 

i) Mr. Barnes, an alternate on the Zoning Hearing Board, moved out of the Township. His 

resignation creates a vacancy on the Board. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to the accept the resignation of Terrance 

Barnes from the Zoning Hearing Board. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

5) Announcements/Meetings 

A) The Administration Office will be closed Monday, Sept. 5 for the Labor Day holiday 

B) Sewer Authority - September 12 at 4:30 p.m. 

C) Environmental Advisory Council - September 19 at 7:00 p.m. 

D) Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee - September 21 at 7:00 p.m. 

E) Zoning Hearing Board - September 22 at 7:00 p.m. 

F) Planning Commission - September 28 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

6) Comments and other Business 

A) Supervisor MacFarland – A wreath-laying ceremony will be held on Sept. 11 at 9:00 a.m. at the 

Township’s 9/11 memorial. A fundraiser for the Montco Hero Fund, which supports first-

responders’ families, is being hosted by the Lower Providence Fire Department on Oct. 2. A 

rehab hospital announced that it plans to build a facility at 2660 Audubon Road; no plans have 

been received by the Township. The first phase of PennDOT’s Ridge Pike – Germantown Pike 

intersection realignment project will be the Ridge-Germantown connector and roundabout with 

work anticipated to begin the spring of 2024. Discussions on the rescue plan funds to be held in 

the near future. 

B) Vice Chair Coless - Two residents displaced by Hurricane Ida are back in their homes, one house 

has been lifted. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
September 1, 2022 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 

   

C) Chief Jackson - In response to a question from Vice-Chair Coless, Chief Jackson said he, Mr. 

Mentry and the Township’s traffic engineer will be meeting to formulate a plan for safety 

improvements on Park Avenue.  

D) Mr. Mentry - The Township will be highlighted in the November issue of Business View 

magazine 

E) Chairman Neights - Glad to see the Township getting publicity as it has much to offer residents 

and businesses  

F) Supervisors Darby - When discussing the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, the Board 

will be taking into consideration what the community has shared with them. 

 

7) Courtesy of the Floor  

A) There was no public comment. 

 

8) Adjournment 

A) MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:16 p.m. 

 

Next Business Meetings:  September 15, 2022 @ 7:00 p.m.   

Budget Workshop  September 28 @ 4:30 p.m.    



Minutes of Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council Meeting – July 18, 2022 
 
The meeting began at 6:10 PM.  Council members Erin McCool, Joseph Lulis, Douglas White, John 
Zollers, Irene Bijou, and Madison Roeger were present. 
 
1. Approval of Minutes. The minutes from the June 20, 2022 meeting were approved 4-0, with Mr. 
Lulis making the motion for approval and Mr. White seconding. 
 
2. Old Business 
 
a) Voting on New Members. Mr. White made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lulis, to add two voting 
positions and two alternates to the EAC. The motion passed 4-0.  
 
Amber Minnick provided a brief overview of her qualifications for the EAC, including noted 
interests in conservation and historic preservation. Township Supervisor E.J. Mentry advised Ms. 
Minnick of the township’s ethics policy requirements. Mr. Zollers motioned to recommend Ms. 
Minnick for the existing unfilled position, which was seconded by Ms. McCool and passed 4-0.  
 
Three candidates for EAC student representative, Jessica Gabell, Sarah Kim and Sameeksha Panda 
spoke briefly on their interest in serving on the EAC. Mr. Lulis made a motion to accept all three as 
student representatives, seconded by Mr. White, which passed 4-0.  
 
b) Subcommittee Reports. 
 
Built Infrastructure. Mr. Zollers made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lulis, recommending that the 
EAC review development plans which come before the township and prepare comments on them 
for review and approval by the EAC and submission to the Board of Supervisors and other 
relevant boards or staff for their consideration in their own reviews of development plans. The 
motion passed 4-0. Mr. Mentry offered to add the members of the EAC to an e-mail distribution 
list of notifications of submission of new development plans.  
 
Green Energy. Mr. White noted that the PECO energy audit is ongoing and that he has personally 
inspected township street lights for possible conversion to more energy efficient models. In 
response to a question from Mr. Zollers he noted that any new fixtures will also consider “dark 
sky” design goals. Mr. Lulis suggested that any cost savings resulting from new fixtures be banked 
to pay for other improvements.  
 
Ms. McCool noted the availability of Pennsylvania DEP grants to pay for various energy efficiency 
and electric car charging infrastructure. Other ideas discussed included use of solar panel 
overproduction at the township public works garage, and on street light infrastructure, for 
electric car charging.  
 
Education and Communication. Ms. Roeger presented some ideas for staffing a booth at Ursinus 
Movie Night events and having handouts available with a scannable QR code linking attendees to 
the EAC website.  
 



A discussion was held about the EAC table at the township Fall Festival. Mr. Mentry and Township 
Supervisor Gary Neights offered to approach electric car manufacturers for a display. Mr. Zollers 
offered to bring a stream table to demonstrate stream dynamics.  
 
Stormwater. Ms. McCool discussed approaches to model different concepts of aesthetics for the 
community through property tours and awards aimed at property owners who take a more 
sustainable approach to yard maintenance. Mr. White noted a nearby demonstrate site for many 
such techniques at Backyard Nature Preserve in Chester Springs 
(https://backyardnaturepreserve.weebly.com/).  
 
Further discussion was held on a public stormwater presentation and gauging interest in such an 
event through polls and discussions at township events. Some ideas included hosting a backyard 
barbecue or winery event including speakers. Ms. McCool offered to speak to Mill Grove or 
Evansburg Vineyard about hosting such an event.  
 
2c) Comprehensive Plan Update. Mr. Lulis noted that there is an upcoming meeting on July 20 at 
7:00 PM and that the committee is now formulating recommendations and priorities for the final 
plan.  
 
3. New Business. The presentation from Penn Future on plastic bags has been postponed. Ms. 
McCool asked for an EAC representative to the EAC Consortium on this topic. 
 
4. Comments and Other Business. Ms. McCool spoke about new Pennsylvania educations 
standards requiring all students to learn environmental literacy. 
 
5. Courtesy of the Floor. No one requested to speak. 
 
6. Adjournment. Mr. White made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Lulis. 
Motioned passed 4-0 and meeting was adjourned at 7:45.  



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP    

PARKS & RECREATION 

July 19, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:15 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Beth Ann 

Mazza, Ray Lotfi, Erin Di Paolo and Michelle Brown, Stephanie Padula was absent.  

B) Also, in attendance:  Karen Hegedus, Recreational Superintendent, Student Rep. Kristen Riddell, 

Parmesh Sivakumar and Iris Gong. 

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of June 21, 2022. 

B)  MOTION: Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to approve minutes of June 21, 2022, Ray Lotfi seconded 

the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 

 

5) Old Business  

A) Discuss and consider the Student Representatives that were interviewed for the upcoming year.  

(1) Ash Jeyapratap 

(2) Sameeksha Panda 

(3) Amy Johnston-Smith gave a recommendation to the board for both applicants 

(4) Kristen Riddell concurred. 

MOTION: Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to approve both applicants for the upcoming year. Michelle 

Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 

MOTION: Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to reappoint Riley McDonald and Parmesh Sivakumar. 

Michelle Brown seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0. 

B) Concert in the Park – June 26th – Southern Edge Band – it was a beautiful night and well attended, 

approximately 100 people were in attendance. 

C) July 4th – Fireworks Show & DJ – Update, another well attended event. Sold out of the glow swords that 

we were selling. Kona Ice was very busy all night. Optimist did very well, also. The show was about 15-

18 minutes long. 

 

6) New Business 

A) Movie in the Park – Wednesday, July 20th @ 7:30pm – Movie at Dusk – Encanto – Community Lawn 

B) Concerts in the Park – August 21st 6:00pm-8:00pm – Todd O’s River of Dreams Tribute to Billy Joel 

C) Summer Camp – Update – Very Challenging year with campers, parents, and lack of staff. Also, there 

was Covid-19 cases. Reevaluating the summer procedures, pay rates and fees. 

D) Review of Capital Budget Projects – 5-year Capital Projects 2023-2027 

(1) Capital Budget Projects were discussed and approved by the Park Board. 

E) Thank you to Kristen Riddell, Charlie Yang, and Iris Gong for their service to the Park Board from 

2020-2022. 

 

7)   Board Comments  

A)  Ray Lotfi, Parks Committee, asked about donations for the Movie in the Parks 

  

8)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless relayed that there is a Board of Supervisors meeting scheduled for July 21st, 2022. 

 

 

 



 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Kristen Riddell made a motion to adjourn. Iris Gong seconded the motion. The motion 

passed 6-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 

Next Meeting: September 20, 2022 





















LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

AUGUST 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 1 of 2 9/7/2022 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Communications / Community Outreach 

 

▪ Website and social media posts of note: 

• 2022 road improvement project 

• DEP drought watch 

• Montco Hero Fund 5K Brews & BBQ event 

• 9/11 Remembrance event 

• Road closure – Park Ave. 

• Methacton Post Prom golf outing 

• Share of Rep. Joe Webster senior fair 

• PA American Water system flushing notice 

• Share of LPPD scam alert 

• Penn State Extension native tree and shrub sale 

• Twp. employment opportunity – Director of Finance 

• Sewer Authority employment opportunity – administrative assistant 

• Park and Rec events, programs 

• Monthly board/commission meetings 

• Good Morning LP 
 

Work was finalized on the fall newsletter; anticipated delivery is mid-September. 

 

E.J. Mentry and I met with the new student representatives Ashish Jeyapratap and Kaitlyn Phan 

to give them an overview of the position. 

 

Right-to-Know Office 

 

During the month, requests for information under the Right-to-Know Law were logged and 

processed, totaling 18 police and 19 non-police. (Copies of reports prepared as a result of an 

accident investigation conducted by the Lower Providence Township Police Department are now  

obtained through Carfax.) 

 

ON-GOING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Community Relations 

▪ Website 

▪  Facebook, Twitter and Instagram posts  

▪ Press releases 

▪ Constant Contact emails 

▪ Cable Access Channel posts 

▪ Trash & recycling concerns 

▪  



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

AUGUST 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 2 of 2 9/7/2022 

 

Administration 

▪ Weekly email to Board of Supervisors with informational items 

▪ Legal advertisements as needed 

▪ Scheduling, correspondence and miscellaneous tasks as needed 

▪ Preparation and distribution of Board agenda packets 

▪ Completion of post-Board of Supervisor meeting tasks, including posting of meeting 

summary and approved minutes on website 

▪ Attendance at staff-solicitor meetings; preparation and distribution of meeting notes 

▪ Maintenance of Resolution, Minute and Ordinance books 
 

Meetings 
▪ Staff meeting - Aug. 3 

▪ CivicClerk discussion - Aug. 16 

▪ J.P. Mascaro - Aug. 25 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Denise Walsh 

Community Relations Coordinator 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

     

FROM: Susan C. Law 

   

DATE:  September 7, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: August 2022 Finance Department Monthly Report   

 

 

 

Budget 

 

• The major portion of the month was spent on budget related projects. 

• August 3, 2022 was the deadline for department heads to input year-end 

projections and 2023 requests into the financial software. Five-year capital project 

meeting was held on August 1, 2022. 

• Completed year-end projections and 2023 budget information for general fund 

accounts that are not assigned to a specific department as well as completing 

information for the remainder of the Township funds.  

• Finalized first draft of budget to discuss with E.J. Mentry and department heads. 

• Attended multiple meetings with E.J. and department heads to discuss each 

department’s 2023 operating budget and capital projects requests. 

• Met with E.J. after all department head meetings and discussed revisions to 

budget. Updated budget as discussed and reprinted reports. 

 

Miscellaneous 

 

• Completed form 536 for Federal Highway Administration. “The Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) requires each state to provide data regarding local 

governmental revenues and expenditures related to the disposition of highway-

user revenues, revenues used for roads and streets, road and street expenditures 

and local highway debt status in order to develop national highway financing 

trends. The State also uses the data to reflect state trends and identify local 

highway needs and funding strategies.” 

• Salary projections for Chuck Friedlander to calculate 2022 MMO. 

• Terminate camp counselors in payroll system. 

• Assisted new HR director with various items. 

• Worked with TD Bank and Freedom Systems to set up Positive Pay feature for 

our four checking accounts. 

• Salary survey for a neighboring municipality. 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

Fire Marshal & Emergency Management Coordinator 

August 2022 Report 

During the month of August 2022:  

 

• Lower Providence Fire Department responded to 30 emergency incidents within the 

Township. 

• Wrapped up most scheduled business license inspections. Issued 64 notices of 

violation for failure to have business re-inspected. 

• Participated in Montgomery County Emergency Management in-service training. 

• Issued one block party permit 

o Peacock Drive 

• Continued pre-plan inspections of businesses. 

• Issued one Special Event Permit 

o Old Union Church’s anniversary celebration  

• Prepared draft budget. 

• Participated in conference call with Venture Solar to discuss ongoing non-

compliance. 

• Conducted an inventory of the contents of all school’s Knox Boxes. 

• Met with LPFD Fire Chief to discuss electric vehicle concerns. 

 

Notes:  



 

 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
MONTHLY REPORT  

August 
 

Administration: 

• I was on vacation from August 8th -16th. 

• Daily communication with Joe Chillano, Director of Public Works, to discuss job tasks/duties for   

parks crew. 

• Met with Joe Chillano and Mike Nester to discuss the details for the water fountain at Eskie Park 

that will be installed.   

• Met with Park and Recreation staff throughout the month to prepare for future programs/trips, 

and special events. 

• Review and signed D&M Firework contract for 2023. 

• Met with E.J. and Sue on the budget. 

• Set up fall schedules for field usage with the School District and outside organizations. 

• Met with Denise to plan the 9/11 event.  

• Continue to work on Fall Festival, Kids Night Out and Trunk or Treat. 

• We sold 19 discounted Movie Tavern tickets in August. Movie Tavern tickets are sold for $8.50 

year -round.  

• We sold 28 discounted Regal Movie ticket. Movie tickets are sold at a discounted price of $10.00 

per ticket year- round. 

• Summer discount tickets are now available to the public for the area amusement parks. In August, 

we sold 13 Adventure Aquarium tickets, 17 Dutch Wonderland tickets, 3 knoebels tickets, and 6 

Philadelphia Zoo tickets. This year PRPS is offering tickets for Six Flags, Dorney Park and many 

more attractions via online purchasing only and is available on our website for the public to 

partake in. 

• We continue to offer Memorial Donation Program which allows residents to purchase a bench, a 

tree, or a brick in a loved one’s honor and have it placed in a special location in one of our 

beautiful parks. In the month of August, 2 benches and 2 trees were purchased, both for 

Eagleville Park. 

• We continue to offer our Hometown Heroes Program and have been replacing the banners 

throughout Eagleville Park as they are purchased. 

• The Todd O’s River of Dreams Band which played Billy Joel music was our final concert for the 

summer. They performed on Sunday, August 21st. The concert began at 6:00 pm. at Eagleville 

Park at the amphitheater. The band attracted many spectators and put on an awesome 

performance! Everyone enjoyed the concert! 

 
Camp Update: 

• Summer Camp came to an end on Friday, August 5.  We had a total a total of 340 campers 

participated in our Summer Camp this year.  Throughout the summer campers enjoyed theme 

days, field trips, guest speakers, and a variety of special events. This year’s camp had its 

challenges but was very successful!  

Parks: 

• GRL landscaping continues to mow and maintain all township properties throughout the 

township. We have an open line of communication with GRL and his staff if any concerns occur. 

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on any matters that need attention.  

• Weekend pavilion rentals are reserved for the month of August. We’re already booked for 

numerous weekends in August. 

• Parks staff continues keep all area parks maintained throughout the summer. 

 



 

Eagleville Park: 

• Installed a new ADA fountain which includes a bottle filler, water fountain and pet fountain. 

• We repaired and paved the walking trail from Eagleville Park to Bittersweet Circle. The Public 

Works Department did a great job completing this project. 

• A few benches were cleaned and repainted in Eagleville Park. 

• The amphitheater received a well-deserved cleaning and a fresh coat of paint and some decorative 

lights before our Concert in the Park event. Mike and Zach did an outstanding job preparing the 

amphitheater for the event. 

• Lower Providence Football made repairs to the snack stand and shed in August and then Mike 

Nester gave it a fresh coat of paint to spruce it up. 

 

Eskie Park: 

• The new ADA bottle filler fountains with attached pet fountain has been installed at Eskie Park 

and is getting a lot of use from park visitors as well as our four-legged friends too. 

 

Redtail Park: 

• The parks crew cut and removed a few dead trees. 

 

Programs for the month of August: 

• Summer Camp June 27th-August 5th  

• Young Rembrandt’s Creative Drawing 

• Jump Star Basketball Camp 

• Snapology Camp 

• Challenger Soccer Camp 

• Chess Camp 

 

Upcoming Events: 

• Concert in the Park “Sunday, August 21st, 6:00-8:00pm -Todd O's "River of Dreams - Billy Joel 

Tribute” Get ready to experience an evening of Billy Joel music like never before. Todd and the 

band get the audience involved with all the legendary Billy Joel songs!  

• Movie in the Park “Clifford the Big Red Dog” -September 16thth at dusk. 

• 9/11 Memorial Event 

 

Facilities Maintenance: 

• Continue to clean Eagleville, Eskie and Evansburg Park bathrooms. They are on a cleaning 

rotation from April through November. 

• Continue to maintain the bathrooms at the MARA complex keep them stocked for fall ball. 

• Trash is picked up weekly or as needed at area parks 

• Continue to inspect area parks daily and make repairs as needed 

 

Daily Tasks:  

• Return calls and emails daily. 

• Respond to requests from the residents.  

• Continue to participate in Zoom/ in person meetings and webinar with PRPS.  

• Continue to monitor and inspect area parks. 

• Update P & R web page, Facebook, Instagram, MyRec and the marquee as needed 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

Jane C. Delaney 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
Submitted By: Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 
POLICE FLEET  Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Miles Traveled 24,530 24,533 24,829 19,839 23,859 190,159 
 

      

INCIDENTS Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Police Activity (CAD) 1,738 2,038 1,904 1,934 2,158 14,972 

         

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Traffic Stops 370 457 437 413 564 3,374 

Traffic Citations 80 108 103 116 178 891 

Non-Traffic Citations 10 15 10 4 11 71 

Criminal Arrests 35 33 49 39 46 295 

Foot and Bike Patrols 174 179 195 179 237 1500 

Traffic Details 115 169 161 147 163 1167 

Public Contacts (Minimum) 832 950 890 860 1074 6,992 

Formal Personnel Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Personnel Compliments 0 2 2 2 5 18 

         

JUVENILE CONTACTS Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Juvenile Contacts 52 56 43 41 51 359 

Juveniles Petitioned 0 2 2 0 1 7 

Warnings Issued 3 7 11 11 15 86 

Citations Issued 2 3 3 4 2 15 

Referral to Other Agencies 0 2 1 2 2 11 

        

ACCIDENTS Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Total Number of Accidents 50 51 56 30 41 345 

Reportable Accidents 14 16 23 13 12 121 

Non-Reportable Accidents 36 35 33 17 29 224 

 
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
 

ALARM RESPONSES Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Total Alarms 72 57 51 68 40 438 

Security Alarms 58 49 36 53 24 320 

Fire Alarms 14 8 15 15 16 118 

       

DETECTIVE DIVISION Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Investigations 30 51 55 34 77 396 

       

SUBPOENAS FOR COURT  Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

District Court 38-1-20 61 71 37 29 45 376 

Montgomery County  3 4 2 8 3 33 

All Others 0 0 0 0 0 9 

       

DUI TASK FORCE Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 24 0 0 64 96 

       

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 8 33 5 0 0 54 

              

DRUG TASK FORCE Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 14 0 18 0 0 66 

       

PA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 10 15 9 0 24 94 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

The following is a list of Community Relations details for August 2022:   

 

On Wednesday, August 3, the police department hosted a “Pizza with a Cop” event for community 

members at Paradise Pizza in the Audubon Square Shopping Center. 

 

On Wednesday, August 10, Chief Jackson and Sgt. Stead met with leaders of the Methacton School 

District to discuss safety initiatives. 

 

On Wednesday, August 17, Chief Jackson, Lt. Hopkins, and Sgt. Stead met with leaders of the Lower 

Providence Fire Department and Ambulance to collaborate about an active shooter event. 

 

On Saturday, August 20, members of A Squad attended a birthday party for a child on Runnymeade 

Drive with a rare genetic disorder. 

 

On Thursday, August 25, Sgt. Stead assisted staff at the Arrowhead Elementary School with traffic 

control for their kindergarten orientation held in the parking lot of Warrior Field. 

 

 

The following is a list of notable TSU activities for August 2022:   

 

On Tuesday, August 23, Lt. Hopkins and Sgt. Stead attended training regarding the implementation of 

the new “BusPatrol” system.  It is a camera system targeting drivers passing school buses with flashing 

red lights in the Methacton School District.  

 

The portable speed display trailer was deployed on Level Road, Barrington Road, and Appledale Road 

each for seven days beginning on August 2. 

 

On August 29, the portable speed display trailer was deployed along the main driveway of the Arcola 

Intermediate School and Skyview Upper Elementary School reminding drivers of the 15 MPH school 

zone. 

 

There were three (3) traffic complaints made by residents during the month.  

 

 

Youth Aid Panel: 

 

The police department submitted two (2) juveniles to the Montgomery County District Attorney’s 

Office Youth Aid Panel Program.   

 

Curfew: 

 

Nine (9) violations of the Township’s curfew ordinance occurred during the month. 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

AUGUST 2022 

Below is a list of some items that the Public Works Department accomplished during the month of 

August. 

• Meet with Jane Delaney daily to review/ discuss departmental needs 

• All PA One call notifications were reviewed, field marked and responded to appropriately 

• Director reviewed road opening permits, performed inspections where required  

• The department completed various and multiple building maintenance tasks  

• Street signs were repaired/replaced 

• Meet with PW Foreman to discuss work assignments and scheduling 

• Director had several meetings with staff on various topics 

• Mechanics performed routine maintenance on Township fleet and equipment 

• Director approved bills associated with the department 

• Janitor cleaned our buildings and Parks comfort stations during the month 

• PW & Parks guys did trash runs twice this week in our Parks. Every Monday and Friday 

• Director returned phone calls and emails addressing residents’ concerns  

• Director worked on the monthly report 

• Potholes were patched, crews went out with hot asphalt 

• Storm sewer inlets were cleaned prior to any rainstorms 

• Multiple storm sewer inlet on various Twp roadways were repaired in place. Work associated  

includes cleaning out the inlet, repairing with brick, lintels and concrete. Replacing the top and 

restoration work. 

• I continued to work with our Twp Engineer and Fema for our reimbursement of funds  

• Traffic signals and streetlights were repaired during the month of August 

• A crew member came in over the weekends to clean for pavilion rentals 

• I continued to work with McMahon on the APS installation for Parklane/Ridge and Eagleville 

traffic signal, quotes are starting to come in for the work  

• Delinquent properties were mowed with high grass violations, determined by Codes Dept 

• St Gab’s field was mowed by the Parks guys 

• The Director continued working on my 2023 Capital and Operational Budgets 

• A new bottle filler/fountain was installed by our crew members. It’s located in Eskie Park 

• The walking path from Sweetgum Rd to Eagleville Park was paved and topsoiled 

• I have been working with Jane to purchase and install a new foot bridge near MARA 

• Post and rail fence was repaired at Redtail Park 



• Held pre construction meeting with Twp Engineer and contractor for road projects 

• PW crew members cracksealed curbing along residents’ properties as they requested 

• School flashers were turned on for the upcoming year 

• 2 large sinkholes were filled and noted, possible candidates for pipe lining 

• 200 tons of salt was delivered, guys stockpiled and tarped 

• Assisted W. Norriton Twp with roadside mowing as they requested 

• Made visits with the Engineer to residential properties for storm water concerns 

• Parks members inspected all playground equipment during the month of August 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Joseph R. Chillano 

      

 

 



























































































































































































Page 1 of 2

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

A

1 CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA 3,000.00$            3,000.00$            1 1 3,000.00$        -$                3,000.00$        -$                      

2 12" SILT SOCK 260 LF 4.00$                    1,040.00$            260 260 1,040.00$        -$                1,040.00$        -$                      

3 TEMPORARY SEED STOCKPILES 1 LS 500.00$               500.00$               1 1 500.00$            -$                500.00$            -$                      

4 E&S MAINTENANCE AND REMOVALS 1 LS 5,000.00$            5,000.00$            1 1 5,000.00$        -$                5,000.00$        -$                      

9,540.00$            9,540.00$        -$                9,540.00$        -$                      

B
1 STRIP TOPSOIL - 12" 3339 CY 3.25$                    10,851.75$          3,339 3,339 10,851.75$      -$                10,851.75$      -$                      
2 CUT 1227 CY 2.38$                    2,920.26$            1,227 1,227 2,920.26$        -$                2,920.26$        -$                      
3 FILL 2.57 CY 2.44$                    6.27$                    3 3 6.27$                -$                6.27$                -$                      
4 ROUGH GRADE SITE 24980 SF 0.01$                    249.80$               24,980 24,980 249.80$            -$                249.80$            -$                      
5 TEMPORARY SEED GREEN SPACE 7130 SF 0.05$                    356.50$               7,130 7,130 356.50$            -$                356.50$            -$                      

14,384.58$          14,384.58$      -$                14,384.58$      -$                      

C
1 6" SDR-35 PVC MAIN 110 LF 54.00$                 5,940.00$            110 110 5,940.00$        -$                5,940.00$        -$                      
2 GREASE TRAP 1 EA 6,800.00$            6,800.00$            1 1 6,800.00$        -$                6,800.00$        -$                      

12,740.00$          12,740.00$      -$                12,740.00$      -$                      

D

1 15" HDPE 73 LF 30.00$                 2,190.00$            73 73 2,190.00$        -$                2,190.00$        -$                      

2 18" HDPE 15 LF 46.00$                 690.00$               15 15 690.00$            -$                690.00$            -$                      

3 INLETS 4 EA 170.00$               680.00$               4 4 680.00$            -$                680.00$            -$                      

3,560.00$            3,560.00$        -$                3,560.00$        -$                      

E
1 18" CURBING 1196 LF 15.50$                 18,538.00$          1,196 1,196 18,538.00$      -$                18,538.00$      -$                      
2 SIDEWALK 2255 SF 6.50$                    14,657.50$          2,255 2,255 14,657.50$      -$                14,657.50$      -$                      
3 TURNICATED DOMES 10 LS 300.00$               3,000.00$            10 10 3,000.00$        -$                3,000.00$        -$                      

36,195.50$          36,195.50$      -$                36,195.50$      -$                      

F

1 FINE GRADE FOR PAVING 1,613 SY 1.25$                2,016.25$            1,613 1,613 2,016.25$        -$                2,016.25$        -$                      

2 2A MODIFIED - 6" 1,613 SY 5.48$                8,839.24$            1,613 1,613 8,839.24$        -$                8,839.24$        -$                      

3 25 MM BASE COURSE -5" 1,613 SY 17.00$              27,421.00$          1,613 1,613 27,421.00$      -$                27,421.00$      -$                      

4 CLEAN AND SWEEP 1 LS 4,000.00$        4,000.00$            1 1 4,000.00$        -$                4,000.00$        -$                      

5 9.5 MM WEARING COURSE - 1.5" 1,613 SY 7.00$                11,291.00$          1,613 1,613 11,291.00$      -$                11,291.00$      -$                      

6 STRIPING & SIGNAGE 1 LS 3,500.00$        3,500.00$            1 1 3,500.00$        -$                3,500.00$        -$                      

57,067.49$          57,067.49$      -$                57,067.49$      -$                      

SITE CONCRETE

Subtotal - EARTHWORK

SANITARY SEWER

Subtotal - SANITARY SEWER

Subtotal - STORM SEWER

Subtotal - SITE CONCRETE

STONE AND PAVING

Subtotal - STONE AND PAVING

E&S CONTROLS

Subtotal - E&S CONTROLS

Opinion of Probable Cost - 2019-01-07

EARTHWORK

STORM SEWER

Escrow Release No.1 - Final
26-Aug-22

Dunkin Donuts - Trooper Road and Ridge Pike
Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

14-0213LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 2 of 2

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

Opinion of Probable Cost - 2019-01-07

Escrow Release No.1 - Final
26-Aug-22

Dunkin Donuts - Trooper Road and Ridge Pike
Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

G
1 CONSTRUCTION STAKEOUT 1 LS 2,000.00$            2,000.00$            1 1 2,000.00$        -$                2,000.00$        -$                      
2 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS 1 LS 1,500.00$            1,500.00$            1 1 1,500.00$        -$                1,500.00$        -$                      
3 PINS 8 EA 100.00$               800.00$               8 8 800.00$            -$                800.00$            -$                      
4 CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION 1 LS 6,000.00$            6,000.00$            1 1 6,000.00$        -$                6,000.00$        -$                      

10,300.00$          10,300.00$      -$                10,300.00$      -$                      

H

1 SHADE TREES 13 EA 300.00$            3,900.00$            13 13 3,900.00$        -$                3,900.00$        -$                      

2 ORNAMENTAL TREES 6 EA 250.00$            1,500.00$            6 6 1,500.00$        -$                1,500.00$        -$                      

3 EVERGREENS 5 EA 175.00$            875.00$               5 5 875.00$            -$                875.00$            -$                      

4 SHRUBS 15 EA 50.00$              750.00$               15 15 750.00$            -$                750.00$            -$                      

5 PERMANENT SEEDING 6,956 SF 0.05$                347.80$               6,956 6,956 347.80$            -$                347.80$            -$                      

7,372.80$            7,372.80$        -$                7,372.80$        -$                      
151,160.37$       151,160.37$    -$                151,160.37$    -$                      

15,116.04$          15,116.04$      -$                15,116.04$      -$                      

166,276.41$       166,276.41$    -$                166,276.41$    -$                      

Subtotal - MISCELLANEOUS

LANDSCAPE

Subtotal - LANDSCAPE

GRAND TOTAL

NET CONSTRUCTION COSTS
10% PER MPC

MISCELLANEOUS

14-0213LP
PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002







Page 1 of 2

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

A

1 Rock Construction Entrance 2 EA 1,250.00$                2,500.00$                0 2 -$                      2,500.00$            2,500.00$            -$                          

2 Compost Sock Washout 1 EA 300.00$                   300.00$                   0 1 -$                      300.00$               300.00$               -$                          

3 12" Filter Soxx 660 LF 5.00$                        3,300.00$                0 660 -$                      3,300.00$            3,300.00$            -$                          

4 18" Filter Soxx 390 LF 7.50$                        2,925.00$                0 390 -$                      2,925.00$            2,925.00$            -$                          

5 24" Filter Soxx 2770 LF 10.00$                      27,700.00$              0 2,770 -$                      27,700.00$          27,700.00$          -$                          

6 Soil Erosion Matting 1960 SY 1.25$                        2,450.00$                0 1,960 -$                      2,450.00$            2,450.00$            -$                          

7 Inlet Protection 43 EA 150.00$                   6,450.00$                0 43 -$                      6,450.00$            6,450.00$            -$                          

8 Tree Protection Fencing 1100 LF 2.75$                        3,025.00$                0 1,100 -$                      3,025.00$            3,025.00$            -$                          

9 Temp Seed Stockpiles 60000 SF 0.06$                        3,600.00$                0 60,000 -$                      3,600.00$            3,600.00$            -$                          

10 Soil Amendments 430 CY 58.00$                      24,940.00$              0 430 -$                      24,940.00$          24,940.00$          -$                          

11 Maintenance of E&S Control 1 LS 10,000.00$              10,000.00$              0.0 1.0 -$                      10,000.00$          10,000.00$          -$                          

-$                          87,190.00$              -$                      87,190.00$          87,190.00$          -$                          

B

1 Strip Topsoil 9920 CY 1.86$                        18,451.20$              4,960 9,920 9,225.60$            9,225.60$            18,451.20$          -$                          

2 Cut-Fill-Compact 1000 CY 2.90$                        2,900.00$                500 1,000 1,450.00$            1,450.00$            2,900.00$            -$                          

3 Replace Topsoil 3210 CY 3.10$                        9,951.00$                1,605 3,210 4,975.50$            4,975.50$            9,951.00$            -$                          

4 Fine Grade 19330 SY 0.95$                        18,363.50$              9,665 19,330 9,181.75$            9,181.75$            18,363.50$          -$                          

5 Rake and Seed 19330 SY 0.10$                        1,933.00$                9,665 19,330 966.50$               966.50$               1,933.00$            -$                          

-$                          51,598.70$              25,799.35$          25,799.35$          51,598.70$          -$                          

C

1 15" HDPE 1533 LF 21.00$                      32,193.00$              0 1,533 -$                      32,193.00$          32,193.00$          -$                          

2 18" HDPE 186 LF 23.00$                      4,278.00$                0 186 -$                      4,278.00$            4,278.00$            -$                          

3 24" HDPE 68 LF 33.30$                      2,264.40$                0 68 -$                      2,264.40$            2,264.40$            -$                          

4 15" RCP 235 LF 42.00$                      9,870.00$                0 235 -$                      9,870.00$            9,870.00$            -$                          

5 24" RCP 178 LF 58.00$                      10,324.00$              0 178 -$                      10,324.00$          10,324.00$          -$                          

6 Type M Inlets 15 EA 1,480.00$                22,200.00$              0 15 -$                      22,200.00$          22,200.00$          -$                          

7 Type C inlets 13 EA 1,480.00$                19,240.00$              0 13 -$                      19,240.00$          19,240.00$          -$                          

8 2'x2' lawn inlets 5 EA 600.00$                   3,000.00$                0 5 -$                      3,000.00$            3,000.00$            -$                          

9 Storm manholes 1 EA 4,265.00$                4,265.00$                0 1 -$                      4,265.00$            4,265.00$            -$                          

10 Endwall 1 EA 1,550.00$                1,550.00$                0 1 -$                      1,550.00$            1,550.00$            -$                          

11 Rip Rap 9 SY 38.50$                      346.50$                   0 9 -$                      346.50$               346.50$               -$                          

12 Stone Underdrain behind Units 21-30 50 TON 17.00$                      850.00$                   0 50 -$                      850.00$               850.00$               -$                          

13 Basin outlet structure 1 EA 3,500.00$                3,500.00$                1 1 3,500.00$            -$                      3,500.00$            -$                          

14 Basin inlets 3 EA 2,500.00$                7,500.00$                3 3 7,500.00$            -$                      7,500.00$            -$                          

15 Basin manholes 2 EA 4,500.00$                9,000.00$                2 2 9,000.00$            -$                      9,000.00$            -$                          

16 Basin 36" HDPE 1950 LF 49.00$                      95,550.00$              1,950 1,950 95,550.00$          -$                      95,550.00$          -$                          

17 Basin Geo-textile fabric 5666 SY 2.00$                        11,332.00$              5,666 5,666 11,332.00$          -$                      11,332.00$          -$                          

18 Basin #57 stone 4720 TON 17.00$                      80,240.00$              4,720 4,720 80,240.00$          -$                      80,240.00$          -$                          

19 NPDES N.O.T. 1 LS 15,000.00$              15,000.00$              0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      15,000.00$              

332,502.90$           207,122.00$       110,380.90$       317,502.90$       15,000.00$              

Subtotal - Erosion & Sediment Controls

Storm Sewer

Subtotal - Storm Sewer

Earthwork

Subtotal - Earthwork

Escrow Release No. 2

September 8, 2022

Erosion & Sediment Controls

Moscariello at Crosskeys

Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost

14-0126LP

PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



Page 2 of 2

QTY UNIT

UNIT

COST TOTAL

QTY

THIS REL.

REL.

TO DATE

$ THIS

RELEASE

$ PAST REL.

TO DATE

$ REL. 

TO DATE BALANCE

Escrow Release No. 2

September 8, 2022

Moscariello at Crosskeys

Lower Providence Township

DESCRIPTION

Opinion of Probable Cost

D

Paving - Roads

1 Subbase 3781 SY 3.55$                        13,422.55$              0 3,781 -$                      13,422.55$          13,422.55$          -$                          

2 3" 2A Stone Base 3781 SY 10.42$                      39,398.02$              0 3,781 -$                      39,398.02$          39,398.02$          -$                          

3 5" Superpave 25mm Base Course 3781 SY 31.42$                      118,799.02$           0 3,781 -$                      118,799.02$       118,799.02$       -$                          

4 1.5" Superpave 9.5mm Wearing Course 3781 SY 6.79$                        25,672.99$              0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      25,672.99$              

5 Sweep and Tack 3781 SY 0.21$                        794.01$                   0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      794.01$                    

6 1.5" Mill and Overlay (Crosskeys Road) 1927 SY 21.00$                      40,467.00$              0 1,927 -$                      40,467.00$          40,467.00$          -$                          

7 Paving - Parking Lot 0

8 Subbase 3360 SY 3.55$                        11,928.00$              3,360 3,360 11,928.00$          -$                      11,928.00$          -$                          

9 3" 2A Stone Base 3360 SY 10.42$                      35,011.20$              3,360 3,360 35,011.20$          -$                      35,011.20$          -$                          

10 5" Superpave 25mm Base Course 3360 SY 31.42$                      105,571.20$           3,360 3,360 105,571.20$       -$                      105,571.20$       -$                          

11 1.5" Superpave 9.5mm Wearing Course 3360 SY 6.79$                        22,814.40$              0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      22,814.40$              

12 Sweep and Tack 3360 SY 0.21$                        705.60$                   0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      705.60$                    

414,583.99$           152,510.40$       212,086.59$       364,596.99$       49,987.00$              

E

1 Curbs - Roads 2761 LF 15.70$                      43,347.70$              0 2,761 -$                      43,347.70$          43,347.70$          -$                          

2 Curbs - parking Lot 2062 LF 15.70$                      32,373.40$              2,062 2,062 32,373.40$          -$                      32,373.40$          -$                          

3 Sidewalks-5' Wide - Townhouses 5125 SF 6.75$                        34,593.75$              3,500 3,500 23,625.00$          -$                      23,625.00$          10,968.75$              

4 Sidewalks-6' Wide - Crosskeys Road 1746 SF 6.75$                        11,785.50$              1,746 1,746 11,785.50$          -$                      11,785.50$          -$                          

5 Sidewalks-Variable - mixed use parkign lot 4912 SF 6.75$                        33,156.00$              3,912 3,912 26,406.00$          -$                      26,406.00$          6,750.00$                

6 Driveway Aprons 900 SF 5.10$                        4,590.00$                800 800 4,080.00$            -$                      4,080.00$            510.00$                    

7 ADA Ramps 15 EA 1,600.00$                24,000.00$              15 15 24,000.00$          -$                      24,000.00$          -$                          

183,846.35$           122,269.90$       43,347.70$          165,617.60$       18,228.75$              

F

1 Pole Mounted Lighting 7 EA 3,400.00$                23,800.00$              7 7 23,800.00$          -$                      23,800.00$          -$                          

2 Canopy Trees 104 EA 350.00$                   36,400.00$              54 54 18,900.00$          -$                      18,900.00$          17,500.00$              

3 Ornamental & Evergreen Trees 120 EA 275.00$                   33,000.00$              60 60 16,500.00$          -$                      16,500.00$          16,500.00$              

4 Shrubs 95 EA 70.00$                      6,650.00$                50 50 3,500.00$            -$                      3,500.00$            3,150.00$                

99,850.00$              62,700.00$          -$                      62,700.00$          37,150.00$              

G

1 Dumpster Pad 1 EA 15,900.00$              15,900.00$              1 1 15,900.00$          -$                      15,900.00$          -$                          

2 Crosswalks and Stop Bars 1 EA 4,000.00$                4,000.00$                0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      4,000.00$                

3 Parking Lot Striping 1260 LF 1.12$                        1,411.20$                0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      1,411.20$                

4 Retaining Wall 2050 SF 30.00$                      61,500.00$              0 1,025 -$                      30,750.00$          30,750.00$          30,750.00$              

4 sTreet Signs 18 EA 312.00$                   5,616.00$                15 15 4,680.00$            -$                      4,680.00$            936.00$                    

5 Concrete Monuments and Iron Pins 8 EA 156.00$                   1,248.00$                0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      1,248.00$                

6 As-Built Plans 1 LS 12,000.00$              12,000.00$              0 0 -$                      -$                      -$                      12,000.00$              

101,675.20$           20,580.00$          30,750.00$          51,330.00$          50,345.20$              

1,271,247.14$        590,981.65$       509,554.54$       1,100,536.19$    170,710.95$            

127,124.71$           -$                      -$                      -$                      127,124.71$            

1,398,371.85$        590,981.65$       509,554.54$       1,100,536.19$    297,835.66$            

Subtotal - Paving

Cocnrete

Subtotal - Cocnrete

Subtotal - Landscaping & Lighting

Landscaping & Lighting

GRAND TOTAL

NET CONSTRUCTION COSTS

10% Contingency

Miscellaneous

Subtotal - Miscellaneous

Paving

14-0126LP

PREPARED BY:                    WOODROW ASSOCIATES, INC.

1108 NORTH BETHLEHEM PIKE - SUITE 5

LOWER GWYNEDD, PA 19002



 

{01470566;V4.3}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE T OWNSHIP 
 

RESOLUTION FOR PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-24 
 
 

WHEREAS, Anthony C. Branca (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has submitted an 

application for Preliminary Land Development approval of a plan for a twenty-five (25) lot 

subdivision and construction of twenty-five (25) single family dwellings located at or near 420, 

426 and 428 Church Road, Eagleville Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, further 

identified as Montgomery County Tax Map Parcel Numbers 43-00-02314-00-1, 43-00-02311-00-

4, 43-00-02308-00-7 and 43-00-02299-00-7 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the 

“Property” or “Properties”), as set forth in a twenty (20) sheet Subdivision and Land 

Development Plan, prepared jointly by Joseph M. Estock of King of Prussia, dated March 31, 

2021, last revised June 27, 2022 and The Crossroads Group dated October 27, 2021, last revised 

June 27, 2022  (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plans”); and 

WHEREAS, the Properties collectively consist of approximately 10.3748 acres and are 

zoned within the R2 – Residential Village House Development Zoning District; and 

WHEREAS, the Plans propose to subdivide the Properties into twenty-five (25) individual 

lots, construct twenty-five (25) single-family dwellings, along with grading, utilities, landscaping, 

lighting, stormwater management facilities, and erosion control, as further depicted on the 

Plans; and  

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has issued review letters dated December 6, 2021, 

February 14, 2022 and July 6, 2022 and the Township Traffic Engineer has issued a review 



 

{01470566;V4.3}2 
 

letters dated May 8, 2021, February 14, 2002 and July 12, 2022 (collectively, “Engineering 

Review Letters”); and 

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Board of Supervisors issued a conditional use decision 

dated April 3, 2020;  

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Planning Commission issued a review letter dated 

May 5, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township (hereinafter referred 

to as “Board”) is prepared to grant conditional approval of Applicant’s Preliminary Subdivision 

and Land Development Application, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township this 15th day of September, 2022, that said application for Preliminary 

Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Plans: The Board grants approval subject to the conditions described herein, to the Plans 

prepared by prepared jointly by Joseph M. Estock of King of Prussia, dated March 31, 2021, last 

revised June 27, 2022 and The Crossroads Group dated October 27, 2021, last revised June 27, 

2022. 

2. Zoning Ordinance.  Applicant was granted conditional use approval on April 2, 2020 to permit 

the construction of twenty-five (25) single-family residences.1   

3. Required Permits and Outside Agency Approvals.  The Applicant or successors or 

assigns shall provide evidence of securing the following permits or approvals where  

 

 
1 While the initial conditional use decision imposed certain conditions of approval, these conditions were appealed 
by the Applicant and ultimately removed.   



 

{01470566;V4.3}3 
 

 

 

needed: 

a. Sanitary Sewer Permits from the Lower Providence Township Sewer Authority. 

b. Approved DEP Land Planning Module/Waiver. 

c. Receipt of Montgomery County Conservation District Adequacy Letter. 

d. NPDES Permit for Construction Activity. 

e. Approval of PA American Water. 

f. PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit and/or Montgomery County Roads & 

Bridge Highway Occupancy Permit, if required. 

g. Building permits, construction permits, road opening permits, electrical permits. 

grading permits from Lower Providence Township, as applicable. 

h. Shop drawings for all materials associated with water, sanitary sewer and/or 

storm sewer utilities shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Township 

Engineer prior to commencement of construction. 

 

4. Conditions of Subdivision Approval.  Preliminary Subdivision and Land Development 

Plan Approval is GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

a. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letters of the Township 

Engineer, Woodrow & Associates, dated December 6, 2021, February 14, 2022 

and July 6, 2022 (or the latest revision thereof).    

b. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 



 

{01470566;V4.3}4 
 

Traffic Engineer, McMahon, dated May 18, 2021, February 14, and July 12, 2022 

(or the latest revision thereof), except that the traffic impact fee shall provide for 

credit of two (2) existing PM peak hour trips at $1,822/trip instead of the one (1) 

existing PM peak hour trip indicated.  The new traffic impact fee will total 

$45,550. 

c. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the Montgomery County Planning 

Commission Review letter dated May 5, 2021.  

d. Applicant shall provide “will serve” letters or other evidence that the premises 

are to be served by public water and sewer and shall submit signed agreements 

to the Township.  

e. All outstanding Township fees associated with the review and approval of the 

foresaid plan shall be paid in full prior to the recording of the final plan. 

f. Prior to plan recording, the Applicant shall verify that there are no existing 

easements, deed restrictions or covenants that would affect the proposed 

development. 

g. Applicant agrees to submit a final plan to Lower Providence Township and the 

Lower Providence Township Engineer for review and approval prior to recording. 

This plan shall indicate compliance with all conditions set forth in this Resolution 

and all Engineer review comments including those contained in the Woodrow & 

Associates and McMahon Associates, Inc., Engineering Review Letters (or the 

latest revision thereof). 

h. Prior to recording of the final plan, the Applicant shall provide the following 



 

{01470566;V4.3}5 
 

executed agreements for recording in a form acceptable to the Township 

Solicitor, each of which shall be recorded concurrently with the final record 

plans: 

i. Land Development Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into a Land 

Development Agreement with the Township. 

ii. Escrow Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into an Escrow Agreement and 

shall post adequate securities in order to construct public improvements, 

as determined by the Township Engineer. 

iii. Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Agreement. Applicant shall 

enter into a Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Agreement, in a 

form acceptable to the Township Solicitor, which provides ongoing 

maintenance obligations for the Stormwater Management BMPs for the 

lot owners or Home Owners’ Association, as applicable. Facilities, areas or 

structures used as Stormwater Management BMPs shall be enumerated 

as permanent real estate appurtenances and encumbered by the 

Applicant as deed restrictions or conservation easements that run with 

the land.  The ownership and maintenance of these Stormwater 

Management BMPs shall be the responsibility of the individual Lot 

Owners and their heirs, successors or assigns.   

iv. Easement Agreements.  Applicant shall provide all required Easement 

Agreements.     

i. The Applicant shall, within ninety (90) days from the date of Final Land 



 

{01470566;V4.3}6 
 

Development Approval, if requested by Applicant and approved by the Board of 

Supervisors, submit final Mylars and papers to the Township for signature and 

recording at the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. There shall be one (1) 

electronic and five (5) papers submitted. Following release and recording of the 

record plan, the Applicant shall notify the Township Manager and the Township 

Solicitor in writing of the plan book, page number and date of recording by the 

Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. 

j. Applicant shall pay final plan fees to the Township in the amount $1,500 plus 

$100 per dwelling unit, for a total of $4,000.  Payment of final plan fees may be 

deferred until final plan approval.   

k. Applicant shall pay park and recreation fees in the amount of $1,160 per dwelling 

unit.  Applicant shall receive credit for two pre-existing dwelling units, so a total 

of $26,680 ($1,160 X 23 new dwelling units) shall be paid prior to recording of 

the final plan approval.   

l. Applicant shall attend a pre-construction meeting with the Township staff and 

appropriate consultants to be held prior to commencement of work. 

m. Prior to the development of each individual lot, the applicant shall apply to 

Lower Providence Township for a building permit. This shall include the 

submission of a grading plan showing the actual building footprint and driveway 

location. 

n. Construction shall not continue past the foundation stage until the 

owner/builder has submitted certification that the first floor and garage floor 



 

{01470566;V4.3}7 
 

elevations of the proposed structure conform to the plans submitted with the 

grading permit application. The certification shall be submitted to the Township 

Engineer and shall be signed and sealed by the responsible registered 

professional land surveyor licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

o. The applicant shall contact the Township Engineer to perform a final grading 

inspection prior to issuance of an occupancy permit. 

p. The applicant shall submit one (1) electronic and five (5) paper final as-built plans 

to the Township for review and approval prior to the issuance of an occupancy 

permit. This plan shall include stormwater management facilities.  

q. Dead street trees or trees within 100 feet of impervious surfaces must be 

replaced by the property owner within 6 months. 

r. Prior to the issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy or Use and Occupancy 

permit, Applicant, at is sole cost and expense, shall complete all steps necessary 

to dedicate any facilities proposed for dedication to the Township as set forth on 

the Record Plans, including but not limited to dedication of any rights-of-way.   

s. All administrative, legal and engineering expenses owed to the Township for plan 

review and/or planning services shall be paid in full by the Applicant prior to 

release of signed record plans. 

t. The Applicant shall comply in all respects with the rules, regulations and 

requirements of all governmental agencies and/or bodies having jurisdiction with 

respect to this Application and shall assume all costs, expense and responsibility 

in connection therewith, without any liability whatsoever on the part of the 



 

{01470566;V4.3}8 
 

Township. 

5. Waivers.  

a. Applicant is requesting, and the Board has approved, the following waivers of the 

Lower Providence Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance 

(hereinafter “SALDO”): 

i. Section §123-33, which requires sidewalks to be constructed along both 

sides of proposed Sky Circle.  Applicant has requested a partial waiver to 

allow the construction of an asphalt trail on the interior side of the cul-

de-sac, rather than concrete sidewalks.  Due to the scope of the project, 

the Applicant’s planned open space improvements adjacent to the 

proposed trail and Applicant’s contribution of $10,000, which represents 

the cost differential between the proposed asphalt trail and concrete 

sidewalks as of the date of this Resolution2, as a fee in lieu of sidewalks, 

the Board has GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

ii. Section §123-33A, which requires that the sidewalk along Church Road to 

be located five (5) feet from the curbline.  Applicant has requested a 

waiver of this section to permit the sidewalk to be four (4) feet from the 

curbline.  Due to the existing conditions and topography of the area, the 

Board has GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

iii. Section §123-36.(2)(d), which requires the common driveway on lots 1 

and 2 to be at least five (5) feet from the property line.  Applicant has 
 

2 If the cost estimates are not accurate as of the date of construction, the Applicant and Township will work in good 
faith to amend the fee in lieu, if appropriate.   



 

{01470566;V4.3}9 
 

requested a waiver of this section to allow the common driveway to be 

located less than the required five (5) feet.  Based upon the existing 

conditions at the Property and the location of the proposed 

improvements, the Board has GRANTED this waiver from this section of 

the Ordinance. 

iv. Section §129-19.C.(2), which requires the use of reinforced concrete pipe 

– strength class III (RCP) for the construction of storm sewer facilities 

within easement areas. Applicant has requested a partial waiver of this 

section to allow for the use of high-density polyethylene pipe with an 

essentially smooth interior wall (HDPE) for utilities located within the 

existing Church Road.  Due to the existing conditions, the Board has 

GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

b. The waiver set forth herein are subject to the following conditions of approval:  

i. Applicant’s fee in lieu of sidewalks of $10,000 shall be either, at the 

Township’s sole and reasonable discretion, be paid in cash or as in-kind 

labor and materials contribution for the construction of an asphalt trail 

on Church Road from the entrance to the Project (shown as Sky Circle) 

and connect to the end of the existing sidewalk north of Walker Avenue.  

Applicant shall coordinate with the Township regarding the construction 

of the referenced asphalt trail and shall use best efforts to coordinate the 

construction such that, if elected by the Township, the in-kind 

contribution of labor and materials for construction of the asphalt trail 



 

{01470566;V4.3}10 
 

can be completed concurrent with site improvement work or or the 

installation of the trail located within the open space of the Project. If 

however, the Township is unable to secure the necessary rights of way or 

complete the planning of the planned asphalt trail in a reasonable time 

frame, such as to not unreasonably delay the site improvements or the 

installation of the trails on the other portion of the Project, the project 

shall not be delayed on this basis alone, and the Township will be limited 

to accepting the $10,000 fee in lieu of sidewalks.  It is the intent of the 

parties that the Applicant shall construct the asphalt trail and that any 

costs that exceed the fee in lieu shall be taken as a credit towards the 

parks and recreation fee associated with the Project as set forth in 

Paragraph 4(k) hereof so long as the asphalt trail can be installed 

concurrent with site improvement work for the Project or the installation 

of the trail located within the open space of the Project.   

ii. Applicant shall use LED lights for all streetlights for the Project. 

iii. Applicant shall provide a third party solar panel option for each newly 

constructed single-family residence, which cost shall be borne by the 

purchaser of the property.  Applicant shall take the potential for solar 

panel installation into consideration in the construction and placement of 

the roof for each single-family residence.   

iv. Applicant shall work with the Township and its engineers to provide 

advance warning signage and possible painted pedestrian crossings at the 



 

{01470566;V4.3}11 
 

intersection of Church Road and Sky Drive/Sky Circle, and add the 

appropriate information to the plans.   

v. Applicant shall install a 240VAC/50A plug in every garage for each single-

family residence.   

 

  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township 

that this preliminary plan approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of the conditions 

contained herein by the Applicant and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a copy of this 

Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the Township 

within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Applicant does not accept 

these conditions and approvals conditioned upon his or her acceptance are hereby revoked, 

and the aforementioned Applicant's plan is considered to be denied for the reasons set forth 

above. 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 15th  day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By :   

E.J. Mentry, Secretary       Gary Neights, Chair



 

{01470566;V4.3}12 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 
Anthony C. Branca, the Applicant and record owner of Parcel Nos. 43-00-02314-00-1, 43-00-
02311-00-4, 43-00-02308-00-7 and 43-00-02299-00-7 located at or near 420, 426 and 428 
Church Road, Eagleville, Lower Providence Township, does hereby acknowledge and accept the 
Preliminary Subdivision and Land Development Plan Approval issued by the Board of 
Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions contained herein as 
recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  Anthony C. Branca   
          
 
 
              
_______________________________________       
       
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 









 

100 Parklane Drive ▪ Eagleville, PA 19403 ▪ Phone: 610-539-8020 ▪ Fax: 610-539-6347  

www.lowerprovidence.org 

 

 
 
 

 

TO: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

CC: E.J. MENTRY, TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

FROM: JANE C. DELANEY, PARKS & RECREATION DIRECTOR 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 9, 2022  

RE: NEW FOOTBRIDGE FROM TIMOTHY TRAIL TO MARA COMPLEX 

 

Due to safety concerns, the Parks and Recreation Board has made the recommendation to 

replace the existing footbridge, located on Township property, from Timothy Trail to the 

MARA complex. This improvement was also recommended in the Parks, Recreation and 

Open Space (PROS) plan approved in 2021. This year, the Parks and Recreation Board 

made changes to the Capital Budget to support projects recommended in the PROS plan 

and to begin to implement those projects.  

 

The total cost of replacing the footbridge is approximately $36,740.00. Below is the 

description of supplied materials and services: 
 

• 1 only-20.42’ x 4’ Continental Truss, Connector Style  

• One diagonal per panel, square end vertical, bearings at equal elevations  

• Fabricated from atmospheric corrosion resistant steel  

• Factory Installed ¼” x 6” steel toe plate placed 2” above deck  

• 42” high truss height above the deck, 4” wide safety rails on the outside of the truss  

• Factory Installed Pressure Treated Wood Deck  

• Anchor bolts, washers, nuts, and bonding adhesive  

• AISC Design Standards: 60 psf uniform live load, 25 psf uniform wind load; No vehicle load  

• The bridge will be delivered in one piece and weigh approximately 4,000 lbs.  

•  Delivered Price: Norristown, Montgomery County, PA…………… $24,240.00  

• Contech DGS Vendor# 160667; Contech Co-Stars Account# 4400022460  

 

Jim Kenney Excavating & Paving, Inc- Remove existing bridge and prep and pave for the 

new bridge at the cost of approximately $12,500.00, included in our yearly equipment 

rental contract. 

 

The Public Works Department will also assist on the project. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 











celsier
Text Box
New Type "B" push button pole.

celsier
Line

celsier
Line

celsier
Text Box
 5ft of 2inch conduit.

celsier
Line

celsier
Line

celsier
Text Box
Replace existing Type "B" push button pole (wobbly) with new Type "B"pole & foundation. 


	1a Constitution Week Proclamation
	2a Draft BOS Minutes 2022-09-01
	2a Minutes EAC 2022-07-18
	2a Park and Rec Minutes 2022-07-19
	2a SA Minutes 2022-07-11
	2b August Monthly Reports
	2b Community Development August 2022 Monthly Report
	2b Community Relations August 2022 Monthly Report
	2b Finance August 2022 Monthly Report
	2b Fire Marshal August 2022 Monthly Report
	2b Parks and Recreation August 2022 Monthly Report
	2b Police August 2022 Monthly Report
	2b Public Works August 2022 Monthly Report

	2c1 BillPayList
	2c2 Treasurers Report
	2c3a Escrow Release Dunkin
	Dunkin Escrow Release
	Dunkin Escrow Release 2

	2c3b Escrow Release Moscariello at Crosskeys
	3a Resoltuion 2022-24  Branca-420 Church Rd
	4a Fence waiver request 2008 Janet Dr
	4b Footbridge for MARA complex
	Memo BOS Timonthy Footbridge 2022
	4b

	4d Accessible Pedestrian System (APS) Ridge Pike  - Parklane Drive
	4d Letter from ElaineHendricks OMS Parklane Eagleville Ridge Traffic Signal
	4d Permit
	4d Pole locations Ridge & Parklane




